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Independent Auditor’s Report

To

The Members of
Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited
(Formerly known as BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited)

Report on the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

1,

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Baroda BNP Paribas
Asset Management India Private Limited (Formerly known as BNP Paribas Asset Management
India Private Limited) (“the Company”), which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31
March 2022, the standalone statement of profit and loss, and standalone statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Financial Statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (“the
Standalone Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its loss and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of
the Act, and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
Standalone Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter

4.

We draw attention to note no.23 of Standalone Financial Statements relating to Composite
Scheme of Amalgamation (the Scheme) of the Company with Baroda Asset Management India
Limited (transferor company) from the appointed date being 1 April 2019, taking effect from
effective date being 14 March 2022 and consequent recognition of items of assets, liabilities,
revenue, expenses and resultant goodwill in pursuance of the Scheme and related disclosures
pertaining thereto. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

5.
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The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report but does not
include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The Other
Information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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1.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

8.

10.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act, with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs, loss and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards (“AS”)
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, the management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
management eitherintends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

11,

12,

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

12.1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.
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12.2,

12.3.

12.4,

12.5.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management,

Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Standalone Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial
Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

13. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

14. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

15,

15.1,

15.2.
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The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2021,
included in the Standalone financial statements, are based on the previously issued
statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with section 133 of the Act, which
were audited by the then statutory auditors namely Kalyaniwala & Mistry LLP, Chartered
Accountants (Firm Registration No.104607W/W100166) for the year ended 31 March 2021
whose report dated 29 April 2021 expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial
statements. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

The financial information of the Company for the period from 1 April 2021 to 13 March
2022 (the period) have been covered by Agreed Upon Procedures under the frame work
of SRS 4400 on ‘Engagements to Perform Agreed-upon Procedures regarding Financial
Information’ carried by its outgoing auditors namely Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP,
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.104607W/W100166) vide their report dated
20 July 2022. In forming our opinion on Standalone Financial Statements, we have
considered the findings in the said report of the outgoing auditors. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter,
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

16. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

17. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

17.1.

17.2.

17.3.

17.4.

17.5.

17.6.

17.7.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

fn our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss and the
standalone cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act,

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of

such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and as per the information
and explanations given to us, the provision of Section 197 (16) of the Act is not
applicable to the Company.

18. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

18.1.

18.2,

18.3.

18.4.
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The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

The management has represented that, as disclosed in the note no. 24.14 to the
Standalone financial statements no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
{either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds).
by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on if of the
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Suite 52, Bombay Mutual Building, Sir Phirozshah Mehta Road, Fort, Mumbai 400001, India &,
w




kkc & associates llp

chartered accountants
{formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

18.5.

18.6.

Ultimate Beneficiaries. Based on reasonable audit procedures adopted by us, nothing
has come to our notice that such representation contains any material misstatement.

The management has represented that, as disclosed in the note no. 24.14 no funds have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. Based on reasonable audit procedures adopted
by us, nothing has come to our notice that such representation contains any material
misstatement.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not declared dividend or paid dividend during the year. Hence,
compliance with Section 123 of the Act by the Company does not arise.

For KKC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

{formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)
Firm Registration No 105146W/W100621

Hasmukh B Dedhia
Partner
ICAl Membership No: 033494

UDIN: 22033494ANPJCO8002

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25 July 2022
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ report on the Standalone Financial Statements of
Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited (Formerly known BNP Paribas
Asset Management India Private Limited) for the year ended 31 March 2022

[referred to in paragraph (15) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date]

a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (“PPE”).

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

b) Fixed assets have been physically verified during the year by the management in accordance
with their annual programme of verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. According to information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

¢) According to information and explanation given to us, the Company does not have any
immovable properties; hence clause (3)(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

d) Inouropinionand accordingto the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not revalued its PPE (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during
the year.

e) [nour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been
initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

ii.  (a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (3)(ii) (a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no working
capital limits has been sanctioned during any point of time in the year to the Company, from
banks or financial institutions which are secured on the basis of secu rity of current assets; hence
clause (3){ii}(b) of the Order is not applicable to it.

iii.  The Company has not made investments in, or provided any guarantee or security or granted
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year. Therefore, the requirement of clauses
(3)(ii){a) to (3)(iii){f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv.  The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or securities covered under
section 185 and section 186 of the Act. In respect of investments made by the Company, in our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act.

v.  Inour opinion and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has no;_ag_cg;g\’sed
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vi.

Vii.

b)

viii.
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any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public during the year in
terms of directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India or the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or
any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, clause
(3}(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1)
of the Act for any of the products / services of the Company. Accordingly, clause (3) (vi) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of records of the Company, in respect of amounts deducted / accrued in the
books of account, in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, cess and any other statutory dues, as
applicable to the Company, have generally been regularly deposited by the Company to/with
the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed statutory
dues payable in respect to above statues, outstanding as at 31 March 2022 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

As informed, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax are not
applicable to the Company during the year under report.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, there are no material statutory dues referred
in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on
account of any disputes except for the following:

Name of Nature of Amount Periodto | Forum where Remar
the Statute | the Dues (Rsin which the dispute is ks, if
Lakhs) amount pending any
relates
(Assessment
b Year) |
IncomeTax | Income 9.14 2010-11 Deputy =
Act, 1961 Tax Commissioner
! ofIncomeTax | |
Income Tax Income 117.62 2017-18 Deputy{ _ =
Act, 1961 Tax Commissioner
- | | of Income Tax -
Finance Service 511.47 | 2008-09to Commiﬁssioner -
Act,1994 (As | Tax 2012-13 of Service Tax
amended)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, we confirm that we have not come across
any transactions not recorded in the books of account which have been s
%)
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disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ix. (a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, it has not taken any loans or other
borrowings. Hence clause (3) (ix) (a), (3) (ix) (c), (3) (ix} (d), {3) (i) (e} and (3) (ix) {f) of paragraph
3 of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or government or any government authority or any other lender.

X. (a) The Company did not raise money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment / private placement of shares /
fully / partly / optionally convertible debentures during the year.

Accordingly, clause (3){x){a) and (3)(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi. (@) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there has
been no fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company that has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no report
under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

xii.  (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, clause (3){xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

xiii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections
177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in
the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv.  (a) Inour opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

{b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the period
under audit.

xv.  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors. Accordingly, clause (3)(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company, and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act, are not applicable to the Company.

xvi.  (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause (3){xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India
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XVil.
xviil.

XiX,

XX,

Xxi.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without obtaining a valid CoR from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934.

(c) The Company is not a CIC as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India
(d} The Group has no CIC as part of the Group.

The Company has incurred cash losses in the financial year Rs. 1317.14 Lakhs, and in the
immediately preceding financial year Rs. 437.16 Lakhs.

There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and we have taken into
consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the Standalone Financial Statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the records of the
Company examined by us, during the year Section 135 of the Act is not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clause (3)(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the records of the
Company examined by us, the preparation of consolidated financial statements under the Act
is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, clause (3)(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

For KKC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Firm Registration No 105146W/W100621

J|'- _I:-—L-—-"—L%

Hasmukh B Dedhia

Partner

ICAl Membership No: 033494
UDIN: 22033494ANPJCO8002

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25 July 2022
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors’ report on the Standalone Financial Statements of
Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited (Formerly known as BNP Paribas
Asset Management India Private Limited) for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Referred to in paragraph “16 (f)” under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Standalone Financial
Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Opinion

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial
Statements of Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited (Formerly known
BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited) (“the Company”) as at 31 March 2022 in
conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements and such internal financial
controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal controls over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the Guidance
Note”). '

Management’s responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

3.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s responsibility

4,
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Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to the Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing {(“SA”), prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with
reference to the Financial Statements. Those SAs and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to the Financial Statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the ial
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Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference
to the Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to the
Standalone Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements

7.

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to the
Financial Statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone Financial Statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the Company ; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Standalone Financial
Statements

8.

Because ofthe inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements, including the possibility of coltusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to the Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For KKC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

(formerly Khimji Kunveriji & Co LLP)
Firm Registrat_ion No 105146W/W100621

Hasmukh B Dedhia

Partner

ICAI Membership No: 033494
UDIN: 22033494ANPJC0O8002

Place: Mumbai

Date: 25 July 2022

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India
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Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited
{Formerly known as BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited)

Balance sheet
as at 31 Mavch 2022

{Currency: Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars Note No 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
L EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder's Funds
{a) Share capital 3 21,588.31 10,773.23
(b) Reserves and surplus 4 (5,485.92) (1.843.92)
Nea-Current Liabilities
{a) Other long term liabilities 5 405.50 3217
{b} Long term provisions .3 484.40 125,62
Current Liabilities
(a) Trade payables 7
{A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
. 16.50 -
small enterprises )
(B) total outst_andmg dues of credltqrs other than 1,433.62 434.23
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(b} Other current liabilities 8 1,241,11 574.70
(¢) Short-term provisions 9 340.20 277.24
Total 2002372 1037327
II. ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a} Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangibles Assets 10
(1) Property, Plant & Equipment 349.38 124.19
{11) Intangible assets 1,626.37 11.80
(iii) Capital work-in-progress 0.84 8.37
(1) Non-current investments 1 1,979.05 856.27
(c} Long term loans and advances 12 1,336.61 1,290.45
Current assets
(a) Current investments 13 8,507.45 7.011.35
{b) Trade receivables 14 976.96 558.69
(¢} Cash and cash equivalent 15 4,803.80 13.90
(d} Short-term loans and advances 16 441.93 498 25
(&) Other currend assets 17 1.33 -
Total 20012372 HL TR 5T
See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 114, 2%
DaRE : 231027
In terms of our report attached.
KKC & Associates LLP For and on behatf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private
(Formerty Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP} Limited
Firm Registration No 105146W/W100621 {Fornterty known as BNP Paribas Asset Management India Privaje- imited)
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| Ir Director Director
} oo', ‘Chartered DIN - 0805587 DIN - 071323
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Membership No: 033494

Mumbai Z 5 JUL 2022

Suresh SQA

Chief Executive Officer

Mumbai
25-Tul-2022

Vivek Kudal
Chief Operating Officer &
Chief Financial Officer



Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited

{Formerly known as BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited)

Statement of profit and loss
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars Note No 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Revenue from operations 18 9,717.60 4,173.95
Other income 19 605.42 586.61
Total Income 10,323.02 4.760.56
Expenditure
Employee benefit expenses 20 5,753.49 2,669.17
Finance costs 21 0.98 .42
Depreciation and amortisation expense 10 931.21 66.39
Other Expenses 22 5.885.69 2,528.13
Total Expenses 12.571.37 5.264.11
Loss before tax (2,248.35) (503.55)
Tax expense
- Current vear Income Tax -
- Tax relating to prior years {10.76)
L.oss for the year 12.237.59) (503,551
Earning per equity share ( Face value Rs. 10)
Basic and Diluted (1.04) {47
. - L1A, 2 &
See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 23 t0 27

In terms of our report attached.

KKC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
fFormerlv Khimii Kunverii & Ca 1.1.PY

Firm Registration No 105146W/W 100621

Hasmukh B. Dedhia
Membership No: 033494

Place : Mumbai
Date : 25-07-2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Baroeda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private

Limited

{Formerly known as BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private

Limited)

P

Joydeep Dutia Ro
Director

DIN - 08055872\

D

Suresh Seni

Chief Executive Officer

Place : Mumbai
Date : 25-07-2022

= Al
Apama Sharma
Director

DIN - 0713231

Vivek Kudal
Chief Operating Officer &
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Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited

{Formerly known as BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited)

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

Pariiculars

A, Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Loss before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortisation
Fixed Assels wrte off / Loss on sale of FA
Finance Cost
Earlier year Excess Tax provision reversal
Interest on bank deposit
Profit en sale on investments
Preceeds en sale of fixed assets (net)
Loss en sale of fixed assets (net)
Unrealised Foreign Exchange (gain) / loss

Operating loss before working capital changes

Changes in working capital :
Adjustments for (increase} / decrease in aperating assets:
Trade Receivables
Long-term loans and advances
Short-term oans and advances
Adj 123 for 1 7 {dh } m operating liabilities:
Trade Payables
Other long-term Habilities
Orther current liabilities
Long-term provisions
Shert-term provisions
Cash from / {used in} from Operations

Taxes inet of refund)
et cash from / (used in) Operating Aetivities (A)

B. Cash flows from Investing Activities:

Captial expenditure on fixed assets, including capital advances
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Purchasge of investments

Praceeds from saie of invesments

Interzst Received

Merger related Transactions (Non Cash)

Investment in Fixed Deposit

Net cash from / (used in) Investing Activities [1:3]
C. €ash flows from Financing Actvities:
Interest oo Bank Deposit

Finance Costs
Net cash from (used i} Financing Activities {C)

Net Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents {A+B+C)
Cash and cash eguivaleats at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Pursuant to the scheme of amalgmatian, there higve been n¢ dscharge by means of cash and cashﬁu} valent

In texms of our report atiached.

KKC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

{Formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)
Firm Registration No 105146W/W100621

Hasmukh B. Dedhia
Membership No: 033494

Place : Munbai
Date : 25-07-2022

éj
“ieep Dutta Rov

For end on behalf of the Board of Direciers

Rs. In Lakhs
31-Marn-22 31-Mar-21
1
{2,248.35) (503.54)
I L4838 (503 .54)
531.21 66.39
4532 .
098 0.42
10.76 -
{16.35) (0.08)
(542.77) (431.3%)
- (0.22)
- (0.01)
{1,818.,65) (B68,39)
418.27) 71.47
(4671} (285.22)
5633 25232
1,015.90 59,52
373,33 2438
566,40 7199
358,78 {498)
62.97 _1122.44%
250.08 (801.34)
0,55 1.267.40
750.63 456,06
(345.88) (75.21)
14,80 0.22
(61,375.00) (13,450.34)
66,572.55 | 13,058.34
- 008
(341.24) -
14770.001 -
(244.77) (466.90)
15.02 B
19.981] o4y
14.04 | {0.42)
19,30 127
13.90 15.17 |
33.80 13.90
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Pirector
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Saresh Soni

Chief Executive Officer
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Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited
(Formerly known as BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statement
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian rupees)

1 Background

Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited (‘BBNPP AMC”)
(Formerly known as BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited), a
private limited company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956, has been
appointed as Asset Management Company of Baroda BNP Paribas Mutual Fund
(*‘BBNPP MF’) by the Trustee Company vide Investment Management Agreement
dated March 14, 2022 executed between Baroda BNP Paribas Trustee India Private
Limited (‘BBNPP Trustee’) (Formerly known as Baroda Trustee India Private
Limited} and BBNPP AMC.

Erstwhile ABN AMRO Asset Management (India) Limited was a company
incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 on November 4, 2003. ABN AMRO
Asset Management (India) Limited had been appointed as Asset Management
Company of ABN AMRO Mutual Fund (Now known as Baroda BNP Paribas Mutual
Fund) by the Trustee vide Investment Management Agreement (IMA) dated April
15, 2004, and executed between ABN AMRO Trustee (India} Private Limited and
ABN AMRO Asset Management (India) Limited. SEBI had approved ABN AMRO
Asset Management (India) Limited to act as the Asset Management Company of the
ABN AMRO Mutual Fund vide its letter No. IMD/YK/11091/2604 dated May 28,
2004.

Due to changes in minority shareholding, the Company was converted into a Private
Limited Company and was named as ABN AMRO Asset Management (India)
Private Limited vide fresh Incorporation Certificate dated June 20, 2008. Consequent
to the global restructuring of ABN AMRO, ABN AMRO Asset Management had
become a part of Fortis Investment Management resulting in indirect change in the
control of AMC. Subsequently, name of ABN AMRC Asset Management (India)
Private Limited had been changed to Fortis Investment Management (India) Private
Limited vide fresh Incorporation Certificate dated September 19, 2008.

Pursuant to global restructuring of Fortis group and indirect change in the control of
AMC, name of Fortis Investment Management (India) Private Limited has been
changed to BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited vide fresh
incorporation Certificate dated October 18, 2010. SEBI vide its letter no.
OW/YE/23202/2010 dated October 12, 2010 has conveyed its no—objection to the
indirect change in control of Fortis Investment Management {India) Private Limited.

ABN AMRO Asset Management (India) Private Limited (now BNP Paribas Asset
Management India Private Limited) had received an approval from SEBI vide its
letter No. IMD/SP/67987 dated May 29, 2006 for rendering services as Portfolio
Manager under SEBI (Portfolio Managers) Rules and Regulations, 1993 under
Registration no. PM/INPGQ0001728. The AMC has commenced Portfolio
Management Business with effect from September 26, 2006. Rendering the portfolio
management services is not in conflict of interest with the activities of the Mutual
Fund. Subsequent to the indirect change in control of Fortis Investment Management
(India) Private Limited, SEBI has granted fresh registration in the name of BNP

Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited vide its letter No. IMD/DOF- ————
I/MT/AOW/25642/2010 dated October 28, 2010 for rendering services as Portfolio # %@S
Manager under SEBI (Portfolio Managers) Rules .JJJ_#:'H"E%E]:QHOIIS 1993 unde /f / Forr,

o Enp g,

Registration No. PM/INP000003716. ,'{/ p2 ==L/

M 9, a | Ass B4y

™ Chartgreq \ 'V"’\:ol\'naa:',,ﬁ” e )3

Lgl CCOUNtan _.l ) ] *Limy ew; ;)\;i:‘.‘\':-'

K{“‘@: / I
% & —

3 MAN4



Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited
(Formerly known as BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statement (Continued)
Jor the vear ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian rupees in Lakhs)

Composite scheme of Amalgamation (‘the Scheme)

1A Further, pursuant to Composite scheme of Amalgamation under Sections 230 to 232
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 as approved
under National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) order dated February 12,
2021(Order), the following events came into effect from appointed date being April
1, 2019 from March 14, 2022, being the date of Order was filed with the Registrar
of Companies:

1. Amalgamation of Baroda Asset Management India Limited (Baroda AMC)
into BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited (BNPP AMC),
with Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited (Formerly
known as BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited) continuing to be
the surviving asset management company {(AMC) with BNP Paribas Asset
Management Asia Limited (BNPP Asia) and Bank of Baroda (BOB) as the
shareholders holding 49.9% and 50.1% respectively of the equity share capital of the
Surviving AMC.

2. Amalgamation of BNP Paribas Trustee India Private Limited (BNPP TC) into
Baroda Trustee India Private Limited (Baroda TC), with Baroda BNP Paribas
Trustee India Private Limited (Formerly known as Baroda Trustee India Private
Limited) continuing to be the surviving trustee company (TC) with BNP Paribas
Asset Management Asia Limited (BNPP Asia) and Bank of Baroda (BOB) as the
shareholders holding 49.9% and 50.1% respectively of the equity share capital of the
Surviving Trustee Company.

Handover of trusteeship and transfer of right to administer and manage all the
schemes of the BNP Paribas Mutual Fund (BNPP MF) to Baroda BNP Paribas
Mutual Fund (Formerly known as Baroda Mutual Fund) (“Surviving MF™), including
merger of schemes of BNPP MF and Baroda Mutual Fund. -

Further, amalgamation of Baroda Asset Management India Limited into BNP
Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited amounts to Change in
Status/Constitution in terms of Regulation 2(d) of SEBI (Portfolio Managers)
Regulations, 2020 and not tantamount to Change in control in terms of Regulation
2(e} of SEBI (Portfolioc Managers) Regulations, 2020.
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Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited

(Formerly known as BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statement (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian rupees in Lakhs)

2 Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis af accounting and preparation of financial statements

The financial statemients of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2021, amended and the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the 2013 Act"). The financial statements have been prepared on
accrual basis under the historical cost convention. The accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those followed in the previous
year.

22 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of
past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand
deposits and short term deposits with banks with original maturities of three months or
less from the date of acquisition and other short-term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk
of changes in value.

23 Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the
Management to make estirnates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the reported income and expenses
during the year, The Management believes that the cstimates used in preparation of the
financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to these
estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in
the periods in which the results are known / materialize.

2.4 Property, Piant and Equipment, Intangible Assets and depreciation

a}  Tangible Fixed Assets are carried at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation
and impairment. Cost includes freight, duties, taxes and incidental expenses related to
the acquisition and installation of the assets,

b}  Intangible asseis comprising of computer software are stated at cost of acquisition,
including any cost attributable for bringing the asset to its working condition, less
accumulated amortisation. Any technology support cost or annual maintenance cost
of such software is charged annually to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

¢}  Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for
cost, less its estimated residual value.
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Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited
(Formerly known as BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statement (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian rupees in Lakhs)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.5

d)  The Company provides pro-rata depreciation under straight line method from the date
the asset is put to use and for any asset sold, until the last date of sale.

e)  Depreciation is calculated considering the useful life of asset as per schedule 1I of the
Companies Act 2013 or any shorter useful life as estimated by the management in the

table given below.
Class of asset Rate of depreciation Estimated Usefui life
Furniture and fixture: 20% 5 years
Office equipment 20% 3 years
Copyrights 12.5% 8 years
Computers  including  33.33% 3 years
computer software
Leasehold Over the period of lease or useful life, whichever
improvemenis is shorter

f)  Fixed Assets individualiy costing Rs.5,000 or less are fully depreciated in the year of
purchase / acquisition.

g}  The Computers and Computer Software are depreciated / amertised on straight line
basis over the useful life and leasehold improvements are depreciated over the period
of lease or useful life, whichever is shorter.

There is change in the estimated useful life of computers from 5 years to 3 years, On
account of above change additional depreciation of Rs. 25.27 Lakhs charged to the
Staterment of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022,

Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset, If such recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an
impairment loss and is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet
date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the
recoverable amount is reassessed, and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject
to a maximum of depreciable historical cost.

The recoverable amount is greater of net selling price and their value in use. Value in use is
arrived at by discounting the future cash flow to their present value based on an appropriate
discounting factor.
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Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited

(Formerly known as BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statement (Continued)
Jor the vear ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian rupees in Lakhs)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Revenue Recognition
Investment management Jees

Investment management fees are recognised net of Indirect tax on an accrual basis as a
percentage of the average daily net assets of the schemes of Baroda BNP Paribas Mutual
Fund (excluding on investments made by the Company in the schemes, intra-scheme
investments and schemes investment in fixed deposits), such that it does not exceed the
expense limit prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of India {(*SEBI') (Mutual
Funds) Regulations, 1996 and any further amendments (the ‘Regulations’) or offer document
of the respective schemes.

Portfolio Management fees

Portfolio management fees are recognized net of indirect tax on an accrual basis in
accordance with the respective terms of contract between the company and Portfolio
Management scheme (‘PMS’) clients.

Advisory fees

Advisory fees are recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the respective terms of
the agreement/arrangements with the counter parties.

Other income

Interest income is recognized on time propottion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and applicable interest rate and accounted on accrual basis.

Purchase and sale of investments is recorded on the trade date, The profit / loss on sale of
investments is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss on the trade date. Profit or loss
on sale of investments is determined using weighted average cost method.

Scheme related expenses

Annual recurring expenses relating to schemes of the Fund which are in exeess of TER
accruals in the schemes, are borne by the Company.

Expenses incurred directly by the Company for schemes are recognised in statement of Profit
and Loss under respective heads.

As per AMFI circular No. 71/2017-18 dated March 23, 2018, interest cost on borrowing to
the extent of portfolio yield for the day should be borne by the borrowing scheme and the
excess interest cost shall be borne by AMC,




Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited
(Formerly known as BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statement (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian rupees in Lakhs)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.8

2.9

2.10

Brokerage Expenses

Brokerage on fixed maturity plans (FMPs) if any is amortized over the term of the
respective FMP. Brokerage on Long Term Equity Fund (erstwhile Tax Advantage Plan -
ELSS8} is amortized over the three year mandatory lock in period.

All advance brokerages except Systematic Investment Plan ('SIP) advance brokerage paid
on all open ended schemes are amortized over their exit load / claw back period, if
applicable. SIP advance brokerage paid on all open ended schemes are amortized over 36
menths. The unamortized portion of the brokerage is carried forward as prepaid expense.

Upfront Brokerage paid on Porifolio Management Schemes (PMS) is amortized over the
exit load period of the PMS scheme. All other brokerage payments are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred

W.e.f. October 22, 2018 — All brokerage & scheme related expenses are being booked in
scheme books and scheme expenses include trail brokerage

Invesiments

Investments are classified as Current or Non-current based on intention of the management
at the time of purchase.

Long term investments are carried at carrying cost less diminution in value other than
temporary in nature, determined separately for each individual investment.

Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and market value. Any reduction in the
carrying amount and any reversals of such reductions are charged or credited to the
Statement of profit and loss. The comparison of cost and market value is done separately for
each individual investment.

The cost of Investment includes purchase price, directly attributable acquisition charges and
reduced by recovery of cost, if any.

Purchase and sale of investments is recorded on the trade date. The profit / loss on sale of
invesiments is recognized in the Statement of profit and loss on the trade date. Profit or loss
on sale of investments is determined using weighted average cost method.

Earning per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted
average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other
contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the period/year. Diluted
earnings per share is computed using the weighled average number of equity shares and
dilutive potential equity shares outstanding at the year end.
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Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited
(Formerly known as BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statement (Continued)
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian rupees in Lakhs)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.11  Employee benefits

Employee benefits include provident fund, gratuity fund, and compensated absences.

Defined contribution plans

The Company's contribution to provident fund is considered as defined contribution plan and
is charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required o be made and when
services are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity fund the cost of providing benefits is
determined using the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried
out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur. Past service cost is recognized immediately
to the extent that the benefits are already vested and otherwise is amortized on a straighi-line
basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. The retirement benefit
obligation recognized in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit
obligation as adjusted for unrecognized past service cost, as reduced by the fair value of
scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus
the present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the schemes,

Short-term employze benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange
for the services rendered by employees are recognized during the year when the employees
render the service, These benefits include compensated absences which are expected to oceur
within twelve months afier the end of the period in which the employee renders the related
service.

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under:

(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that
increase their entitlement of future compensated absences; and

{b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.

Long-term employee benefits

Employee benefits which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of
the period in which the employee renders the related service are recognized as a liability
valued by actuary at the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet
date less the fair value of the plan assets, if any out of which the obligations are expected to
be settled.
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Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited
{Formerly known as BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statement (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian rupees in Lakhs)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.12

2.13

Taxation

Taxes on income

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined
in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961
and other applicable tax laws.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future
economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as
an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax.
Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is highty probable
that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on timing differences, being the differences between the taxable
income and the accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal
in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the fax
laws enacted or substantively enacted as at the reporting date. Defetred tax liabilities are
recognized for all timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for timing
differences of items other than unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses only to the
extent that reasonable certainty exists that sufficient future taxable income will be available
against which these can be realized. However, if there are unabsorbed depreciation and carry
forward of losses and items relating to capital losses, deferred tax assets are recognized only
if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that there will be sufficient
future taxable income available to realize the assets. Deferred tax assets and liabitities are
offset if such items relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing tax laws and the
Company has a legally enforceable right for such set off. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each balance sheet date for their reliability.

Transactions in foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of
the transactions. Exchange difference, if any, arising out of foreign exchange transactions
settled during the year are recognized as income or expense in the Statement of profit and
loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date
are translated at the closing exchange rate on that date. The exchange differences, if any, are
recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items outstanding at the Balance sheet date are reported using exchange rates
at the date of the transactions.




Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited
{(Formerly known as BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statement (Continued)
Jor the vear ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian rupees in Lakhs)

2.14

215

2.16

217

2.18

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past
evenis and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation
in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement
benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best
estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at
each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the cutrent best estimates. Contingent
liabilities are disclosed in the Notes.

Contingent Assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However, contingent assets
are assessed continually and if it virtually certain that an economic benefit will arise to the
asset and recognized in the period in which the change occur.

Goods and Service Tax Input Credit

Goods and Service Tax input credit is accounted for in the books in the period in which the
underlying service received is accounted and when there is no uncertainty in availing /
utilizing the credits.

Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between
acquisition of assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has
determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and
liabilities as current and non-current.

Operating lease

Leases of assets under which all the risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained
by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Amount due under the operating leases are
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss, on a straight - line basis over the lease term in
accordance with Accounting Standard 19 on ‘Leases’ as specified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. Initial
direct costs incurred specifically for operating leases are recognised as expense in the year
in which they are incurred.

Transfer Pricing

The company has a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents
required by transfer pricing legislation under section 92-92F of the Income-tax Act, 1961.
The management is of the opinion that all international transactions are at arm’s length so
that the above legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly
on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxes.
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Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited
{Fermerly known as BNP Paribas Asset Management India Prvate Limited)

Motes to the financial statements (Continved)

{Corrency: Rs in Lakhs)

As at Asat
31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021
3 Share capital
Authorised . )
39,(0),00,000 {Previous year ; 21,50,00,000) equity shares of 30,000.00 21,600.00
Rs.10/- each —
SR [T 250000
Issued, subscribed and paideup *
21,58,83,057 (Previous year : 10,77,32,274) equily shares of 21,588.31 10,773.23
Rs.10/% each
B3 BB
3.1 Reconciliation of the number of shares and tstanding at the b ing and at the end of the reporting perivd:
Name of Share Helders As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021
Na. nf Sliures Amount 3 ﬁ:ﬁm i Amouni
Outstanding at the beginning of the vear 10,77,32,274.00 0,773 10,77,32,274.00 10,773
No. of Shares allotizd during the year U] S TR 1088
baarme=ting w1 1he end of the wwar ZUSEARET 8 JTELT] LT T4 19,774
“Pursuant to the sharcholders agreement dated October 11, 2019 executed between Bank of Baroda & BNP Paribas Asset Munagement Asia Ltd, the Company has issued
19,81,50,783 equity shares of Rs. 19 each o the shareholders of the transf: paty Baroda Asset Management India Ltd on appointed date 1st Apnl 2019 in terms of
the 8cheme from March 14, 2022,
Name of Share Holders As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021
| Ni. of Shpres S heid N uf Akares % held
Bank of Baroda and its nominges 10,%1,50,783.00 50.10% a -
BNP Paribas Asset Management Asia Limited and its nominees 10,77,32,274.00 49.80% 160,7732,274.00 100.60%
Total 2158 83.057.00 TN 10,77 42 17400 [T
3.0 The details of Promoters shareholding of Equily Shares is set out below:
Nanse of Share Holders No. of Shares = No, of Shares
- = Ne. of Sharrs Te held: Ne. if Shares % fuhi
Bank of Batoda and its nominees 16,81,50,783,00 50,10% . -
BNF Paribas Asset Managenent Asis Limited and its nominees 10,77,32,274,00 49.90% 10,77,32,274.00 100.00%
Fotal 158 H1,057.00 108 0| 1077127400 | I
3.4 Detail of shares held by holding company.
[Namee of Share Holders As at 31 March, 2022 = __Asat 31 March, 2021
. “in afl Shares Yo Jerksd i | ke | % hidd
Bank of Baroda and its nominees 10,81,50,783.00 50.10% -
INP Paribas Asset Management Asia Limited and its nominees - 10,77,32,274.00 100.00%
Tojsl B 10.81,%0 783.00 56 (99 10,77,92.274,00 | 1,00 %

3.5 Rights, Preference, Restritlion attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only ene class of shares refermed to as equity shares having Face Value of Rs. 10 each. Each holder of equity share is entifted to one vote pes share. The
holders of equity shares are entitled o dividend, if any, praposed by the Board of Directors and approved by Shareholders at the Annual Genezal Meezing. In the event of
liquidation of she Company, the holders of equity shares will be entifled to receive any of the remaining essets of the Corpany, after distribution of 2f] preferential amounts,
However, ne such preferential amounts exist currently. The distribution will be in proportion to the mamber of equsiy strares beld by the shareholders.

3.5 During the period of 5 yeacg immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date, the Company has issued equity shares without paymers being received in cash pursuant to the

Schetne,

3.7 Drunng the period of 5 years the company has not issued bonus shares and has not bought back any equity shares




Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited

{Formerly known as BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Cunency: Rs in Lakhs)

4 Reserves and surplus

Balance in the statsnent of Profi and Less
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add : Profit of Bareda Asset Management India Limited FY 2019-

20

Add : Profit of Bareda Asset Management India Limited FY 2020-
2t

Less - Marger related Adjusiments

Profit {Loss) for the vesr

Balance at the end of the year

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

{1,843.92) (1,340.38)

84,90 ~

176.41 -

{L,665.72) -
159 o
{5,485.92) (1,843.92)
————— IS O2), — LEO 0

Merger related Adjustments includes Goodwill amortisation impact of FY 2019-2¢ & FY 2020-21 of Rs. 1,624.68 Lakhs and investment revatuation impact of Rs. 41,04

Lakhs on account of the Composite Sch of Amal

5 Other long term habilities.

{*the Sch

')

Lease Equalisation 93.13 3217
Bonus Payable 31237
403.50 327
6 Long term provisions
Gratuity 39790 122.80
Compensated Absences 86.50 232
434,40 = 125
7 Trade payables

(Refar Note 24.10)
Total cwistanchng dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 16.50 -
Total mlandlng dugs of creditors otker than micro enterprises 1,433.62 43423
and small enterprises :

Pavment o Vendor 953,02 11847

Accrued expenses 465,59 31576

Payable to Mutual Fand =

Ad ived from PMS b L51

— WL —_—

Note 7.1
{a} There 15 no amoumt of Interest payable u/s 16 of MSME Act, 2006 and there is no overdue of principal & interest to the supplier covered under
MSME Act.
{b) The above inf: has been d d te #hee extert such parties have been idensified on the basis of information available wish the company

and the game has been relied upon by the auditors.

8  Other current liabilities

Stantory does [Net of GST Input credis Rs 156.70 Lakhs, PY

£4.30 Lakhs] 482,22 40415
Bonus payable T54.84 169.03
Lease Equalisation 4.05 152
124111 — T,
9 Short-term provisiens
Provision for Employee Benefits
Gratuity £3.63 14.15
Compensated Absences 18.48
Provision: for Fringe Benefit Tax E g.01
Provision for Tax 263.09 263.09
340.20 2772
eso ci Q I' W1
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Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited
(Fotmerly known as BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited)

Noies io the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency: Rs in Lalli)

11

Nop-current investments {at cost)

Investment in Mutusl Fund units (Unquoted, Trade)

336,000.000 (Previous year: NIL} Units of Bareda BNP Paribas
Credif Risk Fund- Plan B Growth of Rs. 10 each

394,164,973 (Previcus year: 206,149.013) Units of Barods BNP
Paribas Dynamic Bond Fond - Pl B Growth of Rs. 10 cach

175,619.652 (Previous year: NIL) Units of Baroda BNF Paribas
Gilt Fund- Plan B Growih of Rs. 10 each

6,250-4%( (Previoys year, 2,340,319) Units of Baroda BNP
Paribas Licuid Fund- Plm B Growth of Rs. 1.000 zach

243,540,840 (Previous year: 220,190.938) Units of Barla BNP
Corservative Hybrid Fund - Plan B Growth of Rs, 10 cach

479,197.924 (Previous year: 312,320.416) Units of Baroda BNF
Faribas Shon Durasion Fund- Plen B Growth of Rs. 10 esch

762,879 309 (Provious yoar: 445 434.298) Units of Baroda BNP
Paribas Medmum Duraticn Fund - Plan B Growth of Bs. 10 cach

130,062, 164 (Previous year: 140,173 816) Units of Barada BNP
Paribas Multi Cap Fund - Plan B Growth of Rs. 10 each

375,969 957 (Previous year: 206,868.018) Units of Baroda BNP
Paribas Mid-Cap Fud - Plan B Growth of Rs. 10 tach

101,234.641 (Previous year: 71,828.760) Units of Baroda BNP
Paribas Laree Cop Fund- Play B Growth of Rs. 10 each

220.271.541 (Previous year: NIL) Units of Baroda BNF Paribas
Bading And Finpncial Services Fund - Plan B Growth of Rs. 10

259,194 987 {Previous year: 166,588.925) Unste of Bareda 11011
Paribas ELSS - Plan B Growth of Rs. 10 cach

5,000 (Previous year: NIL) Units of Baroda Ultra Short Duration
Fund - Plan B Growih of Rs. 1.000 each

1,158.816.964 (Previous year: 476,174 242} Units of Baroda
BNP Panbas Balance Advaniage Fund - Direct Growth of Rs. 10

each

L0006, 319 {Previous vear: 4,996 4443 Units of Baroda BNP
Paribes Ovemigiit Fund - Direct Growth of Rs. 1000 each

5,000 {Previous year: NEL) Units of Baroda BNP Paribas Money
Market Fund - Direct Plan Growth of Rs. 1000 gach

300,000 ¢ Previous yesr: NILY Unils of Raroda BNP Paribas
Eauitv Saving Frnd - Direct Plan Growth of Rs. 10 each

3,131 714K Previous year: 3,131 710) Units of Baroda Treasury
Adwantage Fund- Plan B Growth of Rs. 1000 each {Segregated
Pattiofio) (Refer Note 11,2}

336,000.000 ( Previous year: 330,000,000} Units of Baroda
Credit Risk Fund- Plan B Growih of Rs. 10 cack (Segregated
Partfolio) (Refer Note 11.2}

4499 975 001 (Previows year: NIL} Units of Baroda BNP Paribas
Large and Mid Cap Find- Direct Plan Growth of Rs. 10 each

499,975.001 (Previous year, NIL) Units of Baroda RNP Paribas
Banking and PSU Bond Fund- Direct Plan Growth of Rs. 10 each

499 %1%.001 (Previows year: NIL} Units of Baroda BNP Paribas
Bugistess Cycle Fund- Direct Plan Growth of Rs. 10 ¢ach

504,449.468 (Previous year. NIL} Units of Barodz BNP Paribas
Funds Aqua Fund- Divect Plan Growth of Rs. 10 each

499,500,500 (Previous year: 499,500.500} Units of Baroda BNP
Panias Arhiwage Fund- Direct Pla: Growth of Rs. 10 each

332,367 253 {Previous year: 332,367.253) Units of Baroda BNP
Paribas Corporate Bond Fund- Direct Plan Growth of Rs. 10 each

498,633.635 {Previous year: 498,653 635) Units of Baroga BNP
Paribas Fecused Fund- Direct Plan Growth of Rs, 10 each

498,633,635 (Previous year: 498,653.635) Units of Baroela BNP
Paribas India Consumplion Fund- Cirecl Plan Growi of Rs, [0
each

A ar
31 March 2022

4927

118.50

$2.56

n71e

3747

108,58

116.7%

107.1%

7981

5386

8339

3349

12969

100,05

50.00

S0.400

3000

50,96

30406

50,00

5000

50.00

50.00

Asat
31 March 2021

okmaumams -
"&\;@;f"aﬁf

50.00

5000

4890

50.00

30.00

50.00

50.00

50.00

30.00

47.77

50.00

SLG0

50.00

£0.00

5000




Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited
{Formerly known as BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued}

{Currency: Rs in Lakhs)

11

1z

114

As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Tnvestnsent in Muotal Fund onits {(Unquoted, Trade)
235,628 988 (Previous year. 235,628.988) Units of Baroda BNP 50.00 50.06
Paribas Low Duration Fund- Direct Flan Growd#h of Rs. 10 each ' ’
498,907.393 (Previous Year 498,907.393) units of Baroda BNF
Paribas Aggressive Hybrid Fund- Direct Plan Growth of Rs. 11 50.00 50.00
each ——

Totol 100054 oe— L
Investment in Eguity Inatruments (Unquoted)
5,99,100 (Previcus year Nil) Equity sharss of Rs. 10 each fully 59.01 .
aid ur of AMC Repo Clearing Limited i
5.00,009 {Previcus year 5,00,000) Equity shares of Rs. 1 sach 9.60 360
fullv paid up of MF Untities Iudia Prvate Limited : i

Total 55 5§ &
The aggregate book value and market value of investments is as.
follows
Unguoted invesiments in Mutual Funds
- Ageregate book value 1,909.54 846 67
- Apgregate market vzlue 2.968.97 1,349.04
Unguoted investments in Equity Shares
- Aggregate book value 69.51 9,60

Market value of mvestments in unquoted Mutval Funds represents Net Asset Value (NAV) of unilts issued by the Mutual Fund.

The company has seed capital invesnnent in Mutual fund schemes of Baroda BNP Paribas Muvaal Fund as per Regulation Z8(5) of SEBT (Mutual Fund) Regulations, 1996,
The Muatual Fund had enabled Segregation of Portfolio in some of its schemes duning e year, duly following the process as stipulated in SEBI cireular no.
SEBIVHO/IMIVDEZ/CIR/P/2018/150 dated 28.12.2013. The Mutual Fund segregated portfolio in two schemes - Baroda Credit Risk Fend & Bareda Treasuwry Advantage
Fund, as one of (he heidings in the portfolio of the said schemes was maked down to Zero consequent to rafing zction on the instrument. All the unitholders in the scheme
were alfotted unus equal t6 their hobding, consequent to such segregation, with the value of units being zero. The Company, as an mvestor in e scheme was also alletied
units weder the sepregated porifolio. The segregated units were allotied on 06/43/2020. Therefore, apart from holding units originally allotted, the Company also holds units
under the segregated porifolio as of March 31, 2022

Book value of investments of Baroda Asset Munagement India Limited added in investment schedule pursuant to the Scheme.
Book value of invesiments 906,81

The company has investizent in Share capital of AMC Repo Clearing Limited and MEF Utilities Irdia Privare Limited Investment ta Equity shares of AMC Repo Clearing
Limited is i the nante of Baroda Asger Management India Limired which was transferred to the Corapany as résult of Amalgamaiion process and Equity share capital of
MF Utilities India Povate Lumited is in the name of erstwhile name of the company BINP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited.




Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited
(Formerly knewn as BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Cumrency: Rs in Lakhs)

12

13

133

15.2

14

15

16

17

Long term loans and advances

{Unsecured, Considered good)

Secunty Deposits

Advance tax {net of provisions Rs 838 71 Lakhs (P.Y Rs 694.14
Lakhs1]

Fringe Bangfit Tax

Prepaid Expenses

Current investments
Matual Fund units {Unquoted, Nen trade)

50,630.1 22 (Previcus year: NIL} units of Barodla BNP Paribas
Licmid Fund Growth -Plan B of Rs. 1.000 each
44,394 008 {Previows year. NIL} unifs of Bareda BNP Paribas
Monev market Fund Growth of Rs. 1.000 each

52,317.076 (Previous year: NIL} units of Bareda BNP Panbas
Ultra short duratton Fund Growth -Plan B of Rs. 1,000 sach

17,892,387 591 (Previous year: 20,847,467.311 ) units of Baroda
BNP Paribas Low duration Fund Growth -Plan B of Rs. 10 sach

Urquoted mvestments in Mutual Funds
- Agpregate book value
- Apgresate market value

As at
31 March 2022

439.04
836.24

0.13
11.20

133661

1,089.32

49998

650.80

6,267.35

8,507.45
%,694.34

Asat
31 March 2021

393.19
28679

014
1033

1,790.45

7,01).35

7.011.35

7,011.35
7,020.70

Market value of investments in unguoied Mutual Funds represents Net Asset Value (NAV) of units issued by the Mutual Fund

Book valus of investments of Baroda Asset Management Endia Limited added i invesemeni schedule pursuant to the Scheme.

Book value of investments 6,538.32

Frade receivables

{Refer Note 24.11)

Mearagement fees receivable 976.96

976.9%

Cash and cash equivalents

A= Cash and cash equivalants

Cesh in hand 2,717

Balance with banks 31,03

Total Cash & Cash Equivalnt 33,80

B-Other bank balances 4,710.00

{Tenn Deposit with maturity kess than ene year) -
Total 4,503 80

Short-term loans and advances

Advances to vendors 120,37

Prepaid expenses 158.43

Other receivable 0,28

Security Deposits 162,88

Advances to Related Parties -

Batances with Govemment Authorities

-Goods & Service Tax input credit receivable -

~Others -

Others -

———tl 0,
Other current assets
Interest accrued but not due on bank deposits 1.33

538.6%

55860

2.97
1053
13.90

1594

50.5%

4%.60
5523

29726

104




Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited

{Formerly known as BNP Paribas Asset Management Indiz Private Limited)

Notes to the financial staternents (Continued)

{Currency: Rs in Lakhs)

18  Revenue from operations
Management fee
Tavestment advisory and research fee

19 Other inceme
Interest on Bank deposits
Profit ¢n sale of cument investment
Profit on sale on asset
Tnterest on come tax refund
Other Non operating Income

20 Employee benefit ex

Salaries, bonus and allowances
Contribution te provident fund

Staff welfare

Gratuity expense

Recruitment and consultancy charges

The following disclosures have been set out in

Jence with the

Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (A

g Standards} Rules 2021, amended.

20.1  Defined Centribution Plan - Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund snd National Pension Schems

Current Year Previous Year
9,055.52 342945
652.08 744,50
2,717.60 417395
16.35 0.08
54122 431.35
- 022
18.6% 112.94
28.16 . 42,02
r————iAA T X
5132.04 2,520.5%
194,47 85.25
128,81 43.3¢
14244 20,03
— 5573 —_—
—SlElie ST XA
sent of Ac ing Standard 15 on "Employee Benefits” as specified under

The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Logs, which are included under Confributions to Provident fund,

Particulars
Emplayer's contibution 1o Provident Fund,

202 Delinzd Benefit Plais - Guatoity.

Asat
31 March 2622

194.47

2623 Reconciliation of opening and elositg balancs of the present value of defined benefit obligation for gratuity benefits is given below:

. Particulars
Prescai Value of Obligation as at the beginning
Mearger related Adjustmenis
Interest Cost
Past Service Cost (Vested Employees)
Past Servige Cost (En-vested Employees)
Carrent Service Cost
Benefits Paid
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on the Obligation
Present Value of Oblization as af the end

Reconciliation of opening and elosittg Balance of Fair Value of

2022
Plan Assets

Particulars

Fair Vilue of Plan Assels as af the beginning
Acquisition Adjustment

Expecied Retum on Plan Assets

Employer's Contributions

Employee’s Conttibutions

Benefits Pad

Actoarial Gain / {Loss) on the Plan Assets
Fair Vatue of Plan Assets as at flre end

2023 Reconciliation of Fair Valus of Assets and Obligations

Parifculars

Present Value of Obligation
Merger related Adjustments
Fair Value of Plan Assets
Unrecognized Past Service Cost
Net Asset / {Liability}

As at
31 March 2022
136,94
25419
2411
56.39
(77.06)
61,90
456.53
As at
31 March 2022
As at
31 March 2022
456,53
(456.53)
J—
6S0¢p;
7 DT— 7 )

|\ 5\ Accountants | ©
IL:IS'*J'IL‘-;. - t“y
)\

|/ N /Chaﬂe_red nfv )

Asat
31 March 2621
85.23
Asat
31 March 2¢21
§38.03
8.47
26.31
{21.22)
(14.75)
136.94
As at
31 March 2621
Asat
31 March 2021
136.94
(136.94}
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Notes to the financial statemenis (Continued)

(Currency: Rs in Lakhs}

2024

2025

203

Expense recognized during the year Under the head “Employee Benefits Expense”-Refer notes to finencial statzments 20)

Particulars Current Year
Current Service Cost 56.39
Past Service Cost (Vested Emplovees) B
Past Service Cost (Un-vested Emplovess)

Interest Cost 24.15
Expected Retumn on Pian Assets

Net Actuarial (Gain} / Loss recognised in the pericd 61.90
E R ised in of Profit and Loas 142.44

Expenience Adjustments

For the period ending
Partievlars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
{Gain} / Loss on Plan Liabilities 36.95
%% of Opening Plan Liabilities 2.90%
(Gain / (Loss) on Plan Asssis - -
%% of Opening Plan Assets - -

Other Employee Benefits

Previous Year
26.31

847

{14.75)
20.03

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

Provision toward Hability for Leave encashinent made on the basis of aceoarial valvation 25 per A ing Stendards 15. Actuarizl value of kability is Rs. [0,498,189/-

(P.Y. Rs. 2,81,983/) based upon following assumphions

The assumptions of future salary i idered in ial valuation, take of inflation, senierity, pr bon and other relevant
facters, such a3 supply and demand in the employment. Actuarial assumptions used are:-

31 March 2622

Valuation method Prajected unit credit methed
Discount rate 007
Safaty growth rate 0.07
Normal retirement age 60 years
Atirition rate

Baroda Emplovees 908
BNF Emplovees 420
Martalisy rare 100% of TALM 2012-14
Discount Rate:

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market vietds of Indian govemment securities as at the balance sheet date for fhe estimated term of the
ohligations.

Salary Escalation Rate

‘The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, senierity, prometion and other refevant factots,

3t March 2021

Projected unit credit method
6.47%
3.50%

60 years

10.60%

100% of JALM
2012-14
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Motes to the financial statemends (Continued)
{Currency: Rs in Lakhs)

21 Finance costs

Bank chasges

22 Other expenses

Hent
Legal and professional fees
Travelling and convevance
Printing and stationery
Contract staff charpes
Repairs and maintenance - others
Communication
Electricity charges
Advertisement and publicity
Infermation technology
Membership and registranion fees
Director sitiing fees
Marketing expenses
Insurance expenses
Fund accounting expenses
Scheme related expenses
Portfolio Management Services Expenses
Loss on forsign exchange fluctuation {net)
Postage, Freight, Couriers
SEBI and other fees
Rates and faxes
Auditers Remuneration
-Statutory Audit Fees
-Tax Andit Fees
For reimbursement of expenses
-Other services
Miscellanzous expen =

Current Year
098

9.98

Current Year

1,067.91
585,03
93,33
159.68
1.141.43
21141
35.04
4215
207,99
132509
12214
30.70
246,80
27.77
112,04
22408
6.41
859
50.55
44,89
3311

1350
4.00
010
1.50

$0AS

538569

—_— —

Previous Year
042

04

Previous Year

TI2.63
283.42
1229
1151
253.43
121.15
1042
884
43.7%
617.09
2382
16.5¢
.79
17.82
1206
3685
4957

67.43
14.52
2229

540
2.30

14.85
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23.  Composite Scheme of Amalgamation

The Board of Directors of the BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited
(“BBNPP AMC” / “Transferee Company”) on October 3™, 2019 granted its ‘in principle’
approval to the Composite Scheme of Amalgamation (*the Scheme*) between the Company
and Baroda Asset Management India Limited (“Baroda AMC” / “Transferor Company™) to
merge their Asset Management and Trustee Companies in India, thereby integrate their
respective businesses. The scheme was filed with National Company Law Tribunal
(*“NCLT’} on February 11, 2020 in terms of provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Act,

Pursuant to the Scheme, the shares held by the shareholders of the Transferor Company shall
stand cancelled and the Transferce Company shall issue its shares to the shareholders of the
Transferor Company. Upon such issue of shares and from the effective date, the shareholders
of the Transferor Company and the sharehelders of the transferee Company will respectively
hold 50.1% and 49.9% of the issued share capital of the Transferee Company. The share
entitlement ratio is 1.1391 (One Point One Three Nine One) equity shares of INR 10/- each
credited as fully paid up shares of the Transferee Company for every 1 (One) equity share
of INR 10/- each fully paid-up held by such equity shareholder in the Transferor Company.

Approval from Hon’ble NCLT to the Scheme is received on March 2, 2021. Hon’ble NCLT
has sanctioned the scheme w.e.f. Appointed date of April 1, 2019, As per the NCLT order,
Petitioner Companies todged certified copy of the order with Registrar of Companies within
73 days of the receipt of last of the approvals — from authorities i.e. FDI / SEBI / RBI]

Status of Regulatory approvals
Given below is the status of various regulatory approvals in connection with the
Scheme:

» Approval from Competition Commission of India (CCI) was received on December
16, 2019.

Approval from EU Commission was received in May 2020.

Approval of FDI was received on September 27, 2021.

RBI —Approval from RBI received on January 5, 2022,

SEB1- Approval was received from SEBI on January 28, 2022,

¥ V¥V V¥V VW

Thus, with effect from March 14, 2022 (effective date of amalgamation as per NCL.T Order)
the following key events/changes had taken place viz :

6] Merger of Baroda AMC into BNPP AMC (Baroda AMC and BNPP AMC jointly
referred to as “AMCs”), with BBNPP AMC acting as the asset management
company of Baroda BNP Paribas Mutual Fund (erstwhile Baroda Mutual Fund) ({the
surviving mutual fund),

(ii) Merger of BNP Paribas Trustee India Private Limited into Baroda Trustee India
Private Limited (“Baroda BNP Paribas TC”) [formerly Baroda Trustee India Private
Limited], with Baroda BNP Paribas TC acting as the trustee company of Baroda
BNP Paribas Mutual Fund,

(iit)  Change of trusteeship of the schemes of BNP Paribas Mutual Fund (*“BNPP MF™)
from BNPP TC to Baroda TC,




Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited

(Formerly known as BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statement (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian rupees in Lakhs)

(iv) Merger between certain schemes of erstwhile BNP Paribas Mutval Fund and
erstwhile Baroda Mutual Fund, and

{v) Change in names and fundamental attributes of certain schemes of BNP Paribas
Mutual Fund and Baroda Mutual Fund.

Thus, the profit or income accruing or arising to Baroda AMC, or expenditure or losses arising or
incurred by it from the appointed date are treated as the profit or income or expenditure or loss, as
the case may be, of the BBNPP AMC. The Scheme has accordingly been given effect to in these
accounts.

The Company has accounted for the amalgamation as amalgamation in the nature of purchase as
prescribed by Accounting Standard 14 — Accounting for Amalgamation {AS-14) as per Companies
{Accounting Standards} Rules, 2021. All the assets and liabilities of Transferor Company transferred
to and vested in Transferee company pursuant to the scheme, at their respective fair market values
at the close of business on the day immediately preceding the appointed date or the business value
of the Transferor company, as decided by the Transferee company.

In terms of the scheme, the company has acquired assets having net asset value of Rs. 6,753.37 Lakhs
as under;

Sr. No. | Particulars of Baroda AMC Amount {in Rs.}
1 Non Current Assets - 1,266.37
2  Current Assets 6,370.94

Total {1+2) 7,637.31
3  Current Liabilities -803.99
4 Non-Current Liabilities -381.70
Total (3+4)  -1,185.69

5 | Fair Value Gain in respect of Assets 301.75
Net Asset Value 6,753.37
Purchase Consideration 10,815.07
| Goodwill on Amalgamation B 4,061.70

The difference between Net Asset value and Purchase Consideration is considered as Goodwill on
Amalgamation.

In view of the aforesaid amalgamation w.e.f. April 1, 2019, the figures of the previous year are not
strictly comparable with current year.

_,r-"'d i \1‘{‘\_
< ’ %?" e, Q" ‘\ —,
(57 oo
| f G“ade‘e \ __II'I"I N
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24

24.1

Notes to accounts

Related party disclosures

In accordance with Accounting Standard 18 (AS-18) on ‘Related Party Disclosures” as specified under Section
133 of the Companics Act, 2013, the details pertaining to related parties are as under:

A4)

(B)

Names of related parties and their relationship with whom there are ¢transactions during the

current / previous year

Name of the related paris

li:lati{mshij}

Bank of Baroda

Holding Comgrany

BNPF Paribas Asset Management Asia Limited

Joint Venturer — Investing Party
(Previous Year-Holding: Compans )

Limited

Baroda BNP Paribas Trustee India Private

Fellow Subsidiary

BNP Paribas §.A, Singapore Branch

BNP Paribas S.A. India Branch

BNP Paribas SA

(Previous Year Parent

BNP Paribas India Solutions Private Limited

Company/Branches of Parent

Limited

BNP Paribas Wealth Management India Private

Company |

Companies falling under the group
of joint Venturer — Investing Party

Company/Entities under comanon
control of that years Holding

Identification of the above related parties has been performed by the Management which has been

relied upon by the Auditors.

Key Management Personnel

Mr. Suzesh Soni — CEQ — Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Pvt. Ltd. (From March 14,

2022)

Mr. Suresh Soni— CEOQ — Bareda Asset Management India Ltd. (From August 03, 2021 to March 13,

2022)

Mr. Sharad Sharma — Managing Director & CEQ — BNP Paribas Asset Management India Pvt. Ltd.

(Till March 13, 2022)

Mr. Anthony Heredia - CEO & Director - Baroda Asset Management India Ltd.(Till August 2,

2021)

‘.
/:;-t? (Formerty known 83 §\l‘.
2 werrms V5|
3 )
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(C) The transactions carried out with the above related parties in the ordinary course of business are as
follows:
[ Particulars Name of Party Group
Joint Companies Ke
Holding Venturer — | Fellow of Joint Mayna erial | Total
Company | Investing Subsidiary Venturer — l'ersmfnei
Party Investing
Party
Transacti ith related parties
BNP Paribas Asset
Advisory fees | Management Asia . 662.08 662.08
| Limited :t
. (744.50)! {744.50)1
Other Income I
{Interest of Bank of Baroda 3.07 - .07
| Fixed Deposit} -
Interest : k
income (Bank | Do ParibasS.A. - ) 0.06 0.06
. India Branch
interest)
Miscellaneous | BNP Paribas S.A. . .
Income India Branch - - SAEE 3733
_ 1 (45,1531 {45.15)!
Information BNP Paribas India
Solutions Private 297.53
. Technology Limited - - 29753
1
- : okl (194.54)!
| Information 1 BNPF Paribas S.A. 1
Technology | Singajwore Branch - - 116.12 | 1i6.12
(185.44)1 | (185.44)!
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| Particulars Name of Party Group Total
Joint Companies Ke
Helding Venturer — | Fellow of Joint M Y il
Company Investing Subsidiary | Venturer— P anager;a
Party Investing —
| | Party L |
Information | 5
Technolagy BNP Paribas S.A. _ } 358 ] 3.58
- - 1115.17:! - 115.17:1
i Repairs and L FarilEs
int India Solutions 110 - 1.10
AR ATee Private Limited - - :
|
} ) {0.61)! - 061!
Portfolio BNP Paribas
Management Wealth
Services Management R _ _ 2541 - 2541
India Private
Expenses Limited
} _ _ (40.08)' - (40.08) !
Legal and . .
professional }Snl\dl’ l;;rll:la; S - 144 144
| fees e . -
. . - (2.560)! {2.50)!
| Baroda BNP
Paribas Trustee
Rt India Private - - 9.00 ) %00
Limited
R . 450! - ) (4.50)!
"BNF Paribas S.A.
ent Endia Branch . . - 41.27 ) 4127
. . - (268.30)! } (268.30)!
"BNP Paribas
Rent India Solutions - - - 1125 - 11.25
Private Limited )
- - - 9351 - [9.351}
Staff welfare BNP Paribas S.A.
| X - .18 0.18
|_exrenses Singapore Branch - - -
- - ) 227! - | i2.271!
| Royalty | Bank of Baroda 5.00 - - - - J 5.00
Marketing Bank of Baroda 33.10 . ; - . 33.10

. Expenses
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Miscellaneous BNP Paribas S.A, i} il wil
Expense India Branch - -
. - (2.88)! g (285!
L H
. BNP Paribas S.A. | )
Finance Costs India Branch } } - 0.36 ) 0.360
| R - 0.33)? . (033!
Finance Costs Bank of Baroda 0.01 - - - - 0.01
Reimbursement
of expenses Bank of Baroda 0.16 B - - 0.16
| IStaft welfare)
. Suresh Soni - - - - 171.63 171.63
Employee Sharad Sharma R _ 330.60 330.60
benefits
expense ) : ; (251001 {251.09)!
Anthony Heredia ) i} 150,62 150 62
Particulars Name of Grenp Total
Party Joint Companies K [
Holding Venturer— Fellow of Jeint <y .
) s Managerial
Company Investing Subsidiary Venturer— Personmel
Party Investing EYNORTE
| Party
Balances outstanding at the |
end of the year
Trade BNP Paribas
| Payable | 8.A. N 23.67 - 2367
| I - (115171 - {115.17!
[ Trade Bank of
| Payable Baroda 2887 i ) 2987
BNP Paribas
India !
:;"g;le Solutions | - - 14838 . 148.38
4 Private
Limited
BNP Paribas
Trade S.A,
Payable Singapore B 19.53 : 19.53
Eranch
Advances BNP Paribas 030 )
| Outstanding | India - A

O
$

ssocf'

*’ Chartered
countants

Jr
\

/
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Seolutions
Private
Limited
t
= (53.46) (53.464" |
Baroda BNP
Advances Paribas
Outstanding Tr_ustee India - 044 ) 0.44
Private
Limited
- 11,77 B 177"
Balances BNP Paribas
" S.A. India - 18.49 18.49
with banks - -
Branch
. - - (9.80)" (9.80)!
E Balances Bank of
| with banks Baroda 3.39 - 5.59
BNP Paribas -
Trade Asset
Reccivables Management - 60.90 - 60.90
Asia Limited
- 174.29)! - z (74.29)!

Numbers belongs to FY 20-21
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24 Notes to accounts (Continued)
24.2  Deferred taxation
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
a) Deferred tax assets
Carried forward business losses 3631 972.68
Unabsorbed Depreciation 31.45 16.71
Depreciation 598 3842
Employee benefits 15621 80.28
Provision disallowed 68.26 8.76
Total ia) 298.21 1,116.85
b) Deferred tax lability
Brokerajie - 1.32
Total (bi - 132
Deferred tax assets (net) [(aj-ib}} 298.21 1,115.53
Deferred tax assef recoznised in the balance sheet Nil Nil
Deferred tax assets was not recognized as the company has business loss as per tax returns
and absence of virtual certainty that assets can be realized in the future.
24.3  Earnings per share
In accordance with Accounting Standard 20 on Earnings Per Share, the computation of
earnings per share is set out below:
As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Earning per share
Net Loss after tax attributable to equity shareholders (A) (Rs. In Lakhs) (2,237.59) (503 54)
Weighted average number of shares of face value Rs. 18 each (B) (No. in Lakhs) 2,158.83 1077.32
Esio { Diluted Earning per share of face value of Rs. 10 for the vear (A} / (B) -1.04
24.4  Earnings in foreign exchange (on accrual basis)
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Advisory Fee Income 662.08 744.50
¢50C/ -\
of..f—-m.\é

¥/ Chartered ~° \
Accoumants ,| __|'
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24  Notes to accounts (Continued)

24.5  Expenditure in foreign exchange (on accrual basis)
Particulars Current Year  Previous Year
Information Technology 90.33 305.24
Training Expenses {Staff Welfare) 0.18 227
Subscription 53.41 23.99
Staff Welfare 7.01 -
150.93 331.50
24.6  Unhedged foreign currency exposure
| Particulars Currency As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
| I FCY | INR FCY | INR
| Receivables
Trade Receivables UsD 0.80 60.91 | 1.01 74.29
Payables
Provision for Expenses [
- Information Technology SGD 0.39 21.70 0.75 40.97
- Information Technology EURO 0.29 26.30 1.47 131.09
[ - Staff Welfare EURO | 0.051 I 4.02 | 0.31 23.12
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24.7

248

24.9

Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

The company has capital commitments in respect of software amounting to Rs, 264,92 Lakhs
during the current year. (Previous year : Rs. 4,72 Lakhs)

Contingent Liabilities (to the extent not provided for)

Particulars As at 31 March | As at 31 March
2022 | 2021
Claims not acknowledged as debt in respect of
- Income-tax demand disputed by the Company [ 9.15 9.15 |
The matters in dispute are under appeal
- Other claims - Service-tax demand a 51.15 51.15
Segment reporting

The main business of the Company is to manage schemes of Baroda BNP Paribas Mutual
Fund. All other activities of the Company revolve around the main business and accordingly
there are no separate reportable segments, as per the Accounting Standards on Segment
Reporting (AS-17) prescribe under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Leases as Lessee

The company has entered into cancellable operating leases arrangements for offices. Lease
rentals paid for the same are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Particulars Current Year  Previous Year |
Lease expense for the year 1,067.92 772.63 |
Minimum Lease Payments:

Not later than one year 813.95 179.58
Later than one year but not later than five years 2,220.68 24.12

Later than five vears = - |
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24.10

)
(i)
(iif)
{iv)

24.11

(i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

24.12

iy
(i)

Trade Pavable

| Currency: Rs in Lakhsi

Particulars

Cutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

<1 Year

1-2 vears 2.3 vears

>3 vear

Total

MSME

16,50

16.50

[Previous vear)

Others

1.433.62

1433.62

[ Previous vear!

1434235

1434.231

Disputed Dues - MSME

iPrevious vear!

Digpwied Dues - Others

(Freviaus vear

Trade Receivable

|Currency: Rs in Lakhs|

Particulars

Outstanding for followini periods from due date of payment

< 6 Months

6 Morths -
1 vear

1-2 years 2-3 year

>3 years

Total

Undisputed Trade receivables -

976.96

976.96

(Previous vear/

558,68

1558.691

Undisputed Trade receivables -

(Frevious vear!

1sputed Trade receivables -
RERr

|\Previous vear!

Dispated Trade receivables -
Cridere doubaiul

[ revious vear

Capital work in jirogress

| Currency: Rs in Lakhs)

CWIP

to be completed in

Less than 1 v

1-2 wrs

2-3 wis

More than 3urs

CWIF in progress

0.54

pevious 1ear]

837

CWIP temporarily suspended

(Previous year)
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24.13 Financigl Ratios —————
Sy. Ne [Ratia [N T j - Numerator [ Denominator Ratio % Variance |Reasen for
Description Description Variance
1 . . A i

FY 2021-22  Current Ratio Carrent Agsats Current Liabilities 14 731.47 303143 4.86 22 6 7% {Refer Note *
FY 2020-21 ! 808219 1.286.18 6.28 |

| )
FY 2021-22  Debt Euin Ratio Not Applicable H
FY 2020-21 1
i_’}’_2021-22 Debt service coversze Ratio Mot Apjdicable [ |
FY 2020-21
FY 202122 Retum on Equity Ratio Profitfor the year  p) Eguity (2248 35) 16,10239 | (18} -147.60%| Refor Note *
FY 2020-21 i 1503.55)] 292931 10.061]
FY 2021-22 Inventers Tumover Ratic 1 Not Applicable
FY 2020-21 |
FY 202122 |Trads Recewvabls Tumover Reto | overue from - [Trade receivable at 971760 48848 1989 | -35.14% Refer Note *

LA T sl gnil ——iad)| e
FY 2020-21 f 417395 17935 14.94 |
Trade Povable Tumover Ratio Not 4yelicable
|
.-

FY 202122 | Net capital Tumover Ratio Revenuefrom oy olders Funds 971760 16,162.39 060 |  -29.10% Refer Note *
FY 2020-21 4173.95 § 929.31 0.47
|Fy 2021-22 [1et Profit Ratio Loss befors tax z:‘::ﬁ“m (2,248 35) 971760 ©023)  -51.78% Refer Note *
Fvaoze3t | = ' 150355 —aIngs 10.12)
[FY 2021-22 Retum on cajital emplo ed Loss before tax. Sharsholders Funds 1224835 16.102.38 (0540 14760 iefer Note *
(FY 2020-21 1503.55 0 8.929.31 10,061
i ' : i
‘FY 2021-22 |Retumn on Investment Loss before tax Share Capital §2.248.35} 21 588.31 10109 =122.82% |Refer Nots * |
FY 202021 | 1503 55 10.773.23 10.03) B ]

NMote : Reason for vasiance shall be provided for any change in the ratio by mere than 25% as compared to the preceding year.
* In view of amalgamation w.e.{ 01/04/2049 i.e appointment date and effective date of 14 March 2022, the ratios of pervious year are not comparable with current year.

24.14

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (sither from borrowed finds or share premium or any ofher sources or kind of finds) by the Company to or in any other
ded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shal! lend or invest
in party idemwified by or on behalf of the Company {(Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not received any fund from any party(s} (Funding Party) with the understanding
that the Compeny shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified Ly or on behalf of the Company {“Uldmate Beneficiaries™) or provige

person(s} or enfity{ies), including foreign antities {“Int

diaries”} with the und d

whether 1

any guarantee, security of the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.




Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited

(Formerly known as BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statement (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian rupees in Lakhs)

25 Prior year comparatives
Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary,

26 The Company did not have any material transactions with companies struck off under
Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the
financial year.

27 The disclosure requirements to be given pursuant to Gazette notification for Amendments
in Schedule HI to Companies Act, 2013 dated 24 March 2021 effective from 01 April 2021
pertaining to the following matters are not applicable to the company:

(a) Disclosure on Revatuation of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
from Registered Valuers
(b} Benami Property held under Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988
and rules made thereunder
(c) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
{d} Transactions with Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
{e) The company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any Bank or financial
institution or other lender
(f) As per clause (87) of section 2 and section 186(1) of the Companies Act,2013 and
Rules made there under, the company is in compliance with the number of layers as
permitted under the said provisions.
(g) There are no transactions recorded in books of accounts reflecting
surrender/disclosure of income in the assessment under Income Tax Act, 1961.
(h} Disclosures relating to Borrowings obtained on the basis of security of current assets
and utilisation thereof
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